2002

# Jeff Tucker v. State of Utah : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

### Statement of Jurisdiction

Jurisdiction is proper to the Utah Court of Appeals per Utah Code 78-2a-3(2)(h). The instant matter is an appeal from a decision in the Third Judicial District Court.

### Constitutional provisions, statutes, and other determinative factors

The Fourth Amendment of the Constitution of the United States of America, and the corresponding article of the constitution of the state of Utah, the warrant requirement.

The Fourteenth Amendment of the Constitution of the United States of America, limiting the actions of a state against its citizens and guaranteeing due process of law to the citizens of ALL the states, and the corresponding article of the constitution of the state of Utah.

Title 18, United States Code, Appendix 2: Interstate Agreement on Detainers Act.

Utah Code Annotated;

- ° 76-3-203 (both pre and post 1998 amendment),
- ° URCP 65B sections (b) and (d) (compare to sections (c) and (e) of the pre-1996 amendment creating Rule 65C),
- ° URCP 65C (compare to 65B and the claims of petitioner).

### **Issue Presented for Review**

There really is only one question presented for review- was the dismissal of the appellant's (hereinafter referred to as "Mr. Tucker") petition for relief proper? Yet this question itself, if it is to be answered, asks the questions:

- was it proper to dismiss with prejudice valid claims of damage when Mr. Tucker offered on the record at oral argument to withdraw them, and was not given the opportunity to amend the petition to remove them? ,
- was it proper to dismiss the remaining claims of the petition, for the stated reason of its containing an admixture of Utah Rules of Civil Procedure Rules 65B and 65C (hereinafter referred to as Rule 65B and 65C, respectively) without allowing Mr. Tucker to amend the petition? , and
- was it proper to dismiss the petition for the stated reasons when-
  - a) Mr. Tucker stated on record that he makes no claims for post-conviction relief;
  - b) The State identified no claims which were allegedly for post-conviction relief; and
  - c) The State offered no evidence that any of Mr. Tucker's claims were anything other than valid claims for extraordinary relief properly filed under Rule 65B.

The question this Court must therefore ask itself is **does the petition of Mr. Tucker contain claims for post-conviction relief?** If the answer to this question is in the negative then this

Court must ask itself why Mr. Tucker's petition was dismissed in the first place?<sup>1</sup>

Whether Mr. Tucker's petition for extraordinary relief contains claims for post-conviction relief is a mixed question of fact and of law. Mr. Tucker is unable to cite relevant authority pertaining to standard of review, or indeed much relevant authority at all, due to the fact that he has no access to any state case-law at the federal facility where he is now housed. Mr. Tucker asserts, however, that under Boag v. MacDougal, 70 LEd.2d 551, a pro se litigant's pleadings must be construed liberally despite, among other things, a failure to cite proper legal authority.

#### Statement of the Case

This case is an appeal from a Third Judicial District Court's dismissal of a Rule 65B petition for extraordinary relief. Mr. Tucker filed his petition in the Third Judicial District Court as a response to actions made by the State of Utah during his parole violation and revocation process. The office of the Attorney General, acting as the respondent and representing the State of Utah, filed a motion to dismiss on procedural grounds, both as their response and instead of answering the merits of the claims of the petition. Their claim- that Mr. Tucker's petition contained post-conviction relief claims that should properly be filed under Rule 65C.

1. It is quite possible that the dismissal of Mr. Tucker's petition for the stated reasons amounts to a denial of due process, and thus was a manifest constitutional error.



Mr. Tucker filed a reply to the states motion to dismiss. Oral arguments were given before the Honorable Glen K. Iwasaki. At oral argument Mr. Tucker stated his belief that his claims were properly filed under Rule 65B as either "actions of the Board of Pardons" (hereinafter referred to as the BOP) or as "other wrongful restraints on personal liberty", both of which are plainly enumerated under Rule 65B. Mr. Tucker also made the offer at that time that he could withdraw the claims for damages from the proceedings.

The state pointed out no specific claim as being one for post conviction relief, nor offered any evidence that any of Mr. Tucker's claims were for post- conviction relief. However, and in response to Mr. Tucker's admission that he used a 1995 volume of the Utah Code and filed his claims under subsections (c) and (e), the Attorney General pointed out that legislation had created a separate rule, 65C, for post-conviction relief since 1995. The State then offered to send Mr. Tucker the updated versions of Rules 65B and 65C so that he could refile his claims properly.

After hearing arguments the judge dismissed Mr. Tucker's claims for damages "with prejudice", and dismissed the rest of the petition with instructions that Mr. Tucker file his Rule 65B and Rule 65C issues in separate petitions.

### Summary of the Arguments

Both the lower court and states counsel make a mistake in classifying Mr. Tucker's claims as claims for post-conviction re-

lief. Mr. Tucker thinks that this is a mistake both of fact and of law. Mr. Tucker could not possibly be seeking relief from his 1990 state conviction for the simple reason that it occurred before the events of the parole violation process that he bases his petition on. Mr. Tucker's Utah sentence stems from an incident in April of 1990, for which he was sentenced in May of 1990. The incidents that form the basis of the petition, the arrest for parole violation, the intervening 19 months before revocation of parole, and the tolling of his Utah sentence while "paroled" to his federal sentence, all occurred **after** May, 1998.

Further, Mr. Tucker could not possibly be seeking relief from the 2001 federal conviction that arose out of the parole violation investigation. The state court system has no power to grant relief over a federal conviction. Mr. Tucker is therefore at a loss as to how the state, as a respondent, and the lower court itself characterize the claims of the petition as being for post-conviction relief. The petition clearly identifies each claim as being either actions of the BOP, or other wrongful restraints on personal liberty, both of which plainly fall under Rule 65B before **or after** the creation of Rule 65C.

Finally, as a prisoner, Mr. Tucker was made to pay a substantial filing fee to file his petition. Even at a reduced fee of approximately \$65.<sup>00</sup> this fee represented more than 2 months wages for Mr. Tucker at the prison. Even if the petition were, as both the state and the court proclaim, a bastard "hybrid", Mr.

Tucker should have been granted leave to amend the petition.

### ARGUMENTS

#### A. The petition raises no claims for post-conviction relief.

The court erred in accepting at face value the states contention that Mr. Tucker's petition contained claims for post-conviction relief. There is nothing in the record to signify which of Mr. Tucker's claims it would have the court believe were claims for post-conviction relief. The court itself makes no identification of any particular claims as being for post-conviction relief. And most importantly Mr. Tucker stated on record at oral argument that he made no claims for post-conviction relief, but only claims either against "actions of the Board of Pardons" or "other wrongful restraints on personal liberty".

The state obviously confuses the **nature** of Mr. Tucker's requested relief as being a claim **for** post-conviction relief. The type of relief Mr. Tucker seeks, the immediate termination of his Utah sentence for example, might more customarily be reserved to claims of post-conviction relief, but it is also proper relief in an improper parole revocation process as well. And tha clearly falls under the egis of Rule 65B, as parole revocation in Utah is the sole dominion of the Board of Pardons. It is the actions of Adult Probation and Parole (AP&P) as wrongful restraints on liberty, and the actions of the Board of Pardons (BOP), as they relate to Mr. Tucker's Utah parole violation, not any subsequent conviction, that he is seeking relief from. Thus Rule 65B.

### i The warrant for Mr. Tucker's arrest

The BOP issued a warrant to AP&P for Mr. Tucker's arrest. This warrant, and indeed all arrest warrants issued by the BOP, stated that the subject was to be arrested and returned "to actual custody" so that a determination could be made **as to whether there was probable cause** to believe that the subject had violated his parole. An arrest warrant. Without probable cause. The Constitutions of Utah and of the United States forbid this. This action by the BOP is but one of the claims for relief Mr. Tucker properly filed under Rule 65B.

### ii The cancelation of parole revocation hearing

Mr. Tucker was arrested, under a "Board warrant", on 06-12-98 and a parole revocation hearing was scheduled for 08-05-98. Upon that date Mr. Tucker was notified that this hearing was cancelled indefinitely, stated reason; "pending the adjudication of new charges". A "parole violation report" filed by the hearing officer that day stated that charges would be filed "in the next two weeks". The indictment issued by the Grand Jury was filed 08-19-98 a full two weeks **after** the cancellation of Mr. Tucker's revocation hearing. In other words, the charges did not exist at the time of the cancellation of Mr. Tucker's revocation hearing. There were no "new charges" to adjudicate.

State v. Grate<sup>2</sup> held that a person is not "charged" until

---

<sup>2</sup> Mr. Tucker is unable to supply case citation for two reasons,

a complaint is formally filed against a person **AND** he is served notice of the charges he must answer, where he must answer and when. The indictment was not filed until August 19, 1998. Mr. Tucker was not served until September 21, 1998. Both of these events occurred **after** the cancelled revocation hearing. Obviously, no "new charges" existed at the time Mr. Tucker's revocation hearing was cancelled. This conclusion is inescapable. What this amounts to then is the BOP effectively arresting Mr. Tucker and binding him over for federal trial, without his even having been charged with a crime.

The BOP is granted statutory authority to deny, grant or revoke paroles, to commute sentences, fines or restitution. But the BOP is **not** granted the authority to arraign suspects, or even to make probable cause determinations. This is precisely the activities covered by the "actions of the Board of Pardons" subsection of Rule 65B.

Had Mr. Tucker been a citizen without a parole, it would have been required that he be arraigned within 72 hours or be released.

---

2. (cont.) when Mr. Tucker was transferred to federal custody upon "parole" he was not allowed to take his collected legal materials, which included his relevant state statutory code and case law. Further, the federal facility in which Mr. Tucker is now housed provides no access to these materials.

This is also the reason that Mr. Tucker is unable to cite to the record in his brief as he was also unable to retain copies of the filings and pleadings made in the lower court. He was even denied, by the lower court, a copy of the transcript of the arguments presented on 01-28-02.

As it was, Mr. Tucker was not officially arraigned until, or about October 25, 1998. By Utah statute Mr. Tucker was entitled to a revocation hearing within 90 days or be released. Thus, even his diminished right as a parolee was violated. This is reminiscent of the agents of King George III, and the evils that the framers of the Constitution sought to protect us from. The Board of Pardons and Paroles has become a tyrant in the tradition of Goerge III himself. They think nothing of violating the constitution of their state, nor the Constitution of the United States, itself. It is therefore proper for Mr. Tucker to seek, under Rule 65B, as relief for his **re**-incarceration by the BOP, termination of his Utah sentence.

### iii The tolling of Utah sentence while in federal custody

First and foremost, this is an ex post facto application of a clause that did not even exist as a part of Utah Code (UC) 76-3-203 when Mr. Tucker was sentenced in 1990. Yet by its application Mr. Tucker's Utah sentence expiration date is extended from 2005 to the year 2009, effectively **increasing** the length of Mr. Tuckers sentence. This violates the ex post facto clause of Utah's constitution, as well as the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution.

Secondly, from a reading of UC 76-3-203(8) it is plain that the purpose of this section is to toll the sentence of a parolee who gets convicted in finds himself incarcerated in another state all while on parole to Utah. That is not the case here. Mr. Tuck-

er was not convicted while on parole. And in fact he had already been revoked for the activities which constituted his federal charges prior to his conviction on those charges. He was subsequently granted a new parole **after** conviction on those charges. It is this subsequent parole that is at issue here.

Mr. Tucker was in the custody of the state of Utah, and could not begin his federal sentence until Utah relenquished custody of him. Utah is not anxiously awaiting the return of Mr. Tucker to their state so that they may violate his parole, and therefore toll his sentence until he is once again in their custody. Their act relenquished their custody. Or would the BOP have us believe that they could shuttle Mr. Tucker back and forth, from custody to custody at whim? They are thus proposing a construction of the statute that violates the very essence of the "interstate agreement on detainers act".

The BOP knew full well at the time they granted Mr. Tucker his parole that he would be going to a federal facility. Their grant of parole clearly demonstrates their intent that **he should serve the remainder outside of their confinement**. Was this then a false intent? Was the parole grant merely a pretense to effect a transfer of custody in violation of the "detainers" act? Mr. Tucker was released **to** a detainer. Utah has said "we have our pound of flesh". Are we to allow them to flout with impugntity the "detainers" act, as it has the constitution of its state, as well as that of the United states itself?

If Mr. Tucker is indeed on parole, and has done nothing himself to invalidate that parole, then surely the clock must be running. Otherwise, of what value are the conditions of parole imposed upon him? He is in the same position as if his parole had been violated **before it even took effect**. Mr. Tucker has merely accepted what was purported to be a grant of parole. Yet he is being treated exactly as if he has absconded from supervision and then subsequently violated the law.

Or to look at it from another perspective, if Mr. Tucker were to be found guilty of using drugs, assault, or some other such serious infraction while in federal custody on "parole", this would be sufficient to reincarcerate him upon his federal release. Indeed, if this were not the case, then of what value are the parole conditions? There can therefore be only one conclusion: The state has released Mr. Tucker on parole. He was granted parole **after** his federal conviction, which itself occurred **after** the revocation of the parole he was serving when he committed the federal offense. Mr. Tucker has done nothing to violate the conditions of the latest parole. The actions, movements, and transport of Mr. Tucker were all conducted with the BOP's knowledge, and therefore with their authority and consent. Mr. Tucker's Parole, then, must be in effect, and the time he spends on "parole" during his federal sentence must be applied toward service of his Utah sentence.

This action of the BOP in tolling Mr. Tucker's Utah sentence is properly filed under Rule 65B.



#### iv Actions of Adult Probation and Parole

The same basic premise behind the arguments above apply also to the claims for relief due to the actions of Adult Probation and Parole (AP&P). It is by AP&P's contribution to the arrest and reincarceration of Mr. Tucker, **as a parole violator**, that Mr. Tucker seeks relief, and not relief from his prior state or subsequent federal convictions. His claims against AP&P for their part in the violation and revocation of Mr. Tucker's parole were filed under the "other wrongful restraints on personal liberty" clause of Rule 65B.

Even here the "hybrid petition" theory for dismissal fails, as Mr. Tucker is not attacking any conviction. His claims, therefore, cannot be claims for post conviction relief. At best, his claims might be said to be for "post revocation" relief. But, of course, there is no provision for "post revocation" relief, so Mr. Tucker's claims are properly filed under Rule 65B.

The AP&P's misuse of their authority to conduct warrantless searches by allowing police officers to search Mr. Tucker's apartment the evening of June 11, 1998, without a search warrant, ostensibly as a "parole violation search" becomes a valid ground for relief for Mr. Tucker when none of the evidence recovered from the search was ever requested from the police by AP&P nor was it used at the revocation hearing that was finally held. Thus, AP&P were clearly acting **as** police, **for** the police, and were merely utilizing the parole search to assist the police in evading the warrant requirement of the Fourth Amendment, and that of Utah's con-

stitution as well.

The Court is reminded that Mr. Tucker was taken into custody as a suspected parole violator on the 11th of June, 1998 and was not revoked until the 2nd of February, 2000. He was incarcerated at the Utah State Prison the entire intervening 20 months. His revocation hearing, scheduled for the 5th of August, 1998 was cancelled pending the "adjudication of new charges" that had not even been filed yet. The arrest was effected by the device of a warrant which stated on its face that probable cause for the arrest had yet to be determined. Adult Probation and Parole was the arresting agency. It is for AP&P's contributions to the extended incarceration and delayed parole revocation that Mr. Tucker seeks relief by virtue of Rule 65B, for other wrongful restraints on personal liberty.

**B. Mr. Tucker should have been allowed to amend the petition.**

Mr. Tucker offered, at oral argument, to withdraw the claims for damages from the proceedings. He was required to pay a filing fee on the petition which was a substantial part of his inmate wages, equivalent, in fact, to two months wages of the average inmate. If the petition in fact contained claims for post-conviction relief then it would have been proper to allow Mr. Tucker to amend the petition to separate the claims.

**Conclusion**

Mr. Tucker properly filed a petition seeking relief from the violation and revocation of his parole. The state of Utah, instead

of answering the merits of the petition, chose as their response the frivolous argument that the petition was one for post-conviction relief. This contention is not supported by either fact or by law. Mr. Tucker had also requested of the lower court that no continuances or extensions be granted, as this would have the effect of invalidating some of his claims due to the fact that on April 2nd, 2002 he would be placed in the position of having to either accept or refuse his parole.

The denial and dismissal of the petition was not warranted by the facts, was not in the interests of justice, benefitted only the state, and placed unnecessary rigor upon the petitioner by delaying a review of the **facts** until a time when the petitioner himself was forced to invalidate his claims.

Mr. Tucker therefore requests that the remaining three years, two weeks and one day remaining of his Utah sentence at the time of his release on "parole" to federal custody on April 2, 2002 be **terminated** in lieu of the three years, nine months and twenty one days that he spent re-incarcerated as a result of the violations of his rights listed in the petition. This relief is requested specifically for the reasons that;

- a.) the state forfeited any argument pertaining to the actual merits of the petitioner's claims when they chose to answer by filing for dismissal on frivolous grounds,
- b.) the state misrepresented the facts to the lower court by claiming that the petition contained claims for post-conviction relief, and

c.) the lower court failed to establish factually that the petition did in fact contain claims for post-conviction relief.