2002

Jeff Tucker v. State of Utah : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The instant action comes within the original appellate jurisdiction of the Utah Court of Appeals under Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3(2)(g) (1996).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. The trial court correctly dismissed this action with prejudice due to the failure of the petitioner to file the requisite notice of claim with the Attorney General.

This issue was raised by the defendant's motion to dismiss. R. 35-39.

STANDARD OF REVIEW: This matter was decided below upon the defendant's motion to dismiss. Because this issue raises only a question of law, the Court gives the trial courts' ruling no deference and reviews it under a correctness standard. Zion's First National Bank v. Fox & Co., 942 P.2d 324, 326 (Utah 1997). When reviewing the dismissal of a petition for an extraordinary writ, the appellate court accords

“no deference to the conclusions of law that underlie the dismissal. They are reviewed for correctness. In addition, while we must review the fairness of the process by which the Board undertakes its sentencing function, ... we do not sit as a panel of review on the result.” Monson v. Carver, 928 P.2d 1017, 1023 (Utah 1996) (citations and internal quotes omitted).

2. The petitioner’s claims for equitable relief fail to state a claim.

This issue is raised as an alternative ground for affirmance on appeal.

STANDARD OF REVIEW: This Court can affirm on any ground finding support in the record. Sharon Steel v. Aetna Cas. & Sur., 931 P.2d 127, 132 (Utah 1997); K & T, Inc. v. Koroulis, 888 P.2d 623, 628 (Utah 1994).

3. Having never moved to amend his petition, the petitioner cannot claim the trial court erred by not granting leave to amend.

Because petitioner never made an adequate motion to amend his petition in the trial court, there is no basis for review of this issue.

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES

Utah Code Ann. § 63-30-12 (Sup. 2002) **Claim against state or its employee - Time for filing notice.**

A claim against the state, or against its employee for an act or omission occurring during the performance of the employee’s duties, within the scope of employment, or under color of authority, is barred unless notice of claim is filed with the attorney general within one year after the claim arises, or before the expiration of any extension of time granted under Section 63-30-11, regardless of whether or not the function giving rise to the claim is characterized as governmental.

Utah Code Ann. § 76-3-202(8) (Sup. 2002) Paroled persons – Termination or discharge from sentence – Time served on parole – Discretion of Board of Pardons and Parole

(8) While on parole, time spent in confinement outside the state may not be credited toward the service of any Utah sentence. Time in confinement outside the state for a conviction obtained in another jurisdiction shall toll the expiration of the Utah sentence.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Jeff Tucker filed this action against the State of Utah on November 8, 2001. R. 7-13. On December 3, 2001, the trial court ordered the Attorney General's office to file a response to the petition within thirty days. R. 32. On December 17, 2001, the State of Utah filed its motion to dismiss. R. 35-47.

After oral argument on January 28, 2002 (R. 48, 56), the trial court dismissed Tucker's petition on February 12, 2002. R. 57-59. Tucker's damage claims were dismissed with prejudice while the remainder of his claims were dismissed without prejudice. R. 58. The petitioner filed this appeal on March 4, 2002. R. 60-62.

STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS

Jeff Tucker was sentenced to a term of from one to fifteen years on May 18, 1990 for sexual abuse of a child.¹ R. 7. On May 14, 1996, Tucker was released on parole for a second time. R. 7. On June 10, 1998, Utah's adult probation and parole received information that Tucker was in violation of his parole, having committed new offences. R. 7. Parole officers,¹ with assistance from other law enforcement officers, searched

¹ The facts are taken from Tucker's petition so far as his factual statements can be understood.

Tucker's home the next day and seized his computer. R. 8. Tucker was arrested on June 12, 1998, pursuant to a board warrant. R. 9. His parole revocation hearing before the board was continued pending the outcome of federal charges that were to be filed against the petitioner. R. 9. After his conviction on the federal charges, Tucker's parole was revoked on February 2, 2000. R. 9.

Tucker was again granted parole on April 2, 2002, releasing him to a federal detainer so that the petitioner could begin serving his federal sentence. R. 9.

Tucker never filed a notice of claim with the Attorney General before filing this action for damages. R. 42-43.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

A notice of claim is required of all plaintiffs who seek to file an action against the State of Utah or its employees. Tucker's failure to file a notice of claim deprived the trial court of jurisdiction to hear his claims for damages.

The trial court dismissed the remainder of the petition on the grounds suggested by the respondent, that it was improperly brought pursuant to Rule 65B as opposed to Rule 65C of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The State of Utah admits that this petition could be properly brought under Utah R. Civ. P. 65B(d). But the dismissal of Tucker's petition should be affirmed on the alternative ground that he had failed to state a claim upon which relief could be granted. The petition admits that the parole authorities had been informed of potential parole violations by fellow officers. Peace officers have a right to rely upon information provided by fellow officers. Parole authorities can perform

warrantless searches without violating the rights of a parolee. The parole board has the right to continue a revocation hearing pending the outcome of the federal charges.

Finally, Utah law prohibits the granting of credit towards Tucker's Utah parole for the time he is serving in a federal correctional facility due to his federal conviction.

The trial court correctly dismissed this action and this Court should affirm that decision.

ARGUMENT

I. TUCKER FAILED TO FILE THE NECESSARY NOTICE OF CLAIM

The Utah Governmental Immunity Act governs the procedure for suing the State of Utah, its agencies, and its employees. Both this Court and the Utah Supreme Court have held that the filing of the notice of claim required by the Act is a jurisdictional precondition to filing any suit against the state or its employees. Lamarr v. Utah State Dep't of Transp., 828 P.2d 535, 540-42 (Utah App. 1992); Rushton v. Salt Lake County, 1999 UT 36, ¶18, 977 P.2d 1201; Madsen v. Borthick, 769 P.2d 245, 249-50 (Utah 1988). Full (strict) compliance with the requirements of the Utah Governmental Immunity Act is essential to maintain a cause of action thereunder. Lamarr; Rushton, 1999 UT 36, ¶19; Scarborough v. Granite School District, 531 P.2d 480 (Utah 1975).

At the relevant time, the Governmental Immunity Act required that:

[a] claim against the state, or against its employee for an act or omission occurring during the performance of his duties, within the scope of employment, or under color of authority, is barred unless notice of claim is filed with the attorney general within one year after the claim arises,

Utah Code Ann. § 63-30-12 (1998) (in part).

The Immunity Act defines a claim as "any claim or cause of action for money or damages against a governmental entity or against an employee." Utah Code Ann. § 63-30-2(1) (2000). Petitioner's damage claims are either claims or causes of action for money, even though brought in a petition for extraordinary relief. As such, Tucker had the obligation to file a timely notice of claim that he has failed to fulfill. The trial court correctly dismissed the petitioner's damage claims for lack of jurisdiction and that decision should be affirmed on appeal.

II. PETITIONER FAILED TO STATE A CLAIM

The trial court dismissed the remainder of the petitioner's claims on the ground that they should have been raised pursuant to Rule 65C instead of Rule 65B. Respondent submits that this may have been an error. While Rule 65B(d) is a proper avenue for seeking relief against the Utah State Board of Pardons and Parole, any error in dismissing this petition was harmless. First, the dismissal was without prejudice to its being refiled properly without the invalid damage claims that were jurisdictionally defective. Second, as shown below, the petitioner had failed to state a claim under either rule.

A. Parole Officers Can Rely Upon Information Provided by Fellow Officers

Petitioner's first claim is that there was something improper in the parole officers relying upon the information, which he now claims was false, provided by a Salt Lake City detective. R. 7. But law enforcement personnel can rely upon information from

fellow officers in determining whether or not probable cause, or reasonable suspicion, exists.

Officers may rely on information furnished by other law enforcement officials to establish reasonable suspicion and probable cause for an arrest. Allbright v. Rodriguez, 51 F.3d 1531, 1536 (10th Cir. 1995). There is no evidence in the record that Spiegel had any reason to doubt Howe's statements. Consequently, even if we conclude Howe is not entitled to qualified immunity for detaining Foote, Spiegel could rely on Howe's statements in deciding to conduct field sobriety tests and arrest Foote.

Foote v. Spiegel, 118 F.3d 1416, 1424 (10th Cir. 1997).

No violation of the petitioner's rights can be shown from the simple fact that parole officers may have relied upon information provided by fellow peace officers.

B. A Parolee Can Be Arrested and His Home Searched Without a Warrant

A parolee's home can be searched without a search warrant. The Utah Supreme Court has expressly held that 1) only reasonable suspicion need be shown, and 2) other law enforcement officers' participation in such a search does not invalidate it. State v. Velasquez, 672 P.2d 1254, 1261-63 (Utah 1983). The same is true of the arrest of a parolee. Reasonable suspicion requires only that the search or arrest not be based upon "a mere hunch without factual basis, nor upon casual rumor, general reputation or mere whim." Id. at 1262 (internal quotes omitted). Adequate reasonable suspicion existed to search Tucker's home where a citizen informant reported being shown child pornography by an individual on parole for sexual abuse of a child and that the parolee had contacted a female child on the internet. R. 7. Tucker's petition fails to state a claim and it was correctly dismissed.

That the search uncovered evidence not just of a parole violation, but of new crimes, does not invalidate the search. That the evidence was used in obtaining Tucker's new federal conviction does not invalidate the search. That the revocation was based on the new convictions, and not directly upon the evidence itself, does not invalidate the search. No right of the petitioner was violated and the dismissal of this action should be affirmed.

C. Board of Pardons Can Continue a Parole Revocation Hearing for Good Cause

Nor does the petitioner's claim that the Board continued its hearing pending the outcome of the new federal charges state a claim. By rule, the Board can "[f]or good cause, . . . continue the hearing beyond 30 days." R671-515-1 Utah Admin. Code. Such a continuance was found appropriate in Petersen v. Board, 907 P.2d 1148, 1150 (Utah 1995). No right of the petitioner was violated by the board's rational decision to await the outcome of the new charges in federal court before making a final determination on whether to revoke Tucker's parole.

D. Tucker is not Entitled to Credit for Time Served in Federal Custody

By law, "[w]hile on parole, time spent in confinement outside the state may not be credited toward the service of any Utah sentence. Time in confinement outside the state for a conviction obtained in another jurisdiction shall toll the expiration of the Utah sentence." Utah Code Ann. § 76-3-202(8) (1999). This same result was reached by this Court in Ontiveros v. Utah Board of Pardons, 897 P.2d 1222 (Utah App. 1995) (parolee

who was incarcerated in California prison not entitled to credit on Utah sentence for time so served).

Tucker was released on parole by Utah. The purpose of parole is to supervise a criminal during his initial period of being reintroduced into society. This purpose cannot be fulfilled while Tucker is incarcerated in another jurisdiction. Nor can Tucker be given credit towards his Utah sentence when he is no longer in the custody of Utah, but is serving an independent sentence imposed by another jurisdiction.

Petitioner's claims fail on the merits. Rather than remand this matter to the trial court to consider these issues, respondent urges this Court to affirm the dismissal of this action on the alternative ground that the petitioner has failed to state a claim.

III. PETITIONER DID NOT FILE A MOTION TO AMEND

Tucker, on appeal, claims that the trial court erred by not permitting him to amend his petition. No such motion was ever made to the trial court. No effort was made by the petitioner to amend his petition. Petitioner's response to the motion to dismiss did not address this issue. R. 53-55. Utah law requires that a motion to amend a complaint be accompanied by a proposed amended complaint. Holmes Dev., L.L.C. v. Cook, 2002 UT 38, ¶¶56-59, 48 P.3d 895. Petitioner failed to comply with this rule. Indeed, the record is void of any showing that he sought to amend his petition in any manner below. The trial court cannot be said to have erred in denying a motion to amend that was never made.

Further, the appellant cannot raise new issues for the first time on appeal. Espinal v. Salt Lake City Bd. of Educ., 797 P.2d 412, 413 (Utah 1990) ("This claim was raised

for the first time on appeal. With limited exceptions, the practice of this Court has been to decline consideration of issues raised for the first time on appeal. We therefore do not address this claim.” (citations omitted)). The limited exceptions to this general rule deal with cases in which the appellate court is persuaded that "the trial court committed plain error or exceptional circumstances exist in this case." State v. Sepulveda, 842 P.2d 913, 917-18 (Utah App. 1992) (footnote omitted). See also State v. Brown, 853 P.2d 851, 853 (Utah 1992); State v. Emmett, 839 P.2d 781 (Utah 1992). No plain error or exceptional circumstances have been shown here. Given the petitioner’s failure to raise this issue in the trial court, this Court should refuse to consider the question on appeal.

CONCLUSION

For the above stated reasons, respondent State of Utah asks this Court to affirm the dismissal of this action.

RESPONDENT DOES NOT DESIRE ORAL ARGUMENT OR A PUBLISHED OPINION

The respondent-appellee does not request oral argument and a published opinion in this matter. The questions raised in this appeal, having already been decided by this Court in published opinions, are not such that oral argument or a published opinion are necessary, though the respondent desires to participate in oral argument if such is held by the Court.